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1. Name of Property

historic name Blandwood
other names/site number Keeley Institute
2. Location
street & number 447 West Washington Street LI not for publication
city, town Greengborg L] vicinity
state _North Carolipa  code county  Guilford code zip code 27403
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
D private building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[:] public-local [j district 3 | buildings
ﬁ] public-State l:] site sites
[:] public-Federal I:] structure structures

E] object objects

Total

Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously

listed in the National Register ___________

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

nomination (] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, the property Dmeets does not meet the National Register criteria. Ses continuation sheet.

Signature of certifying official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property D meets L__]does not meet the National Register criteria. DS« continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification NCA - 26 ENT:4/17/70 CERT: 5/17/71

|, hereby, certify that this property is:
(Jentered in the National Register.

[:] See continuation shest.
("I determined eligible for the National
Register. E] See continuation shest.

(] determined not eligible for the
National Register.

(Jremoved from the National Register.

(] other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

/

/



6. Function or Use

Historic Functiens (enter categories from instructions)
domestic single family dwelling

secondary structure: 1. Kitchen Dependency

2. Law Office Dependency

Health Care Sanitarium

Current Functions (enter categories from irstructions)
House Museum
Recreation and culture

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Mid-nineteenth Century Italian Villa

Materials (enter categories from instructiong)

foundation __brick

walls _exterior: stucco/clapboard

interior: plaster/wood

roof ___standing seam, terne coated stee]l

other

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

See Continuation Sheet Section 7, #1

I:] Sae continuation sheet
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Blandwood is an important early example of the Italian Villa Style of
architecture. 1t is believed by Jane mg,theblogra;he.roflemrder;r. Davis,
tobetheoldestactante:anpleoftmsstylemttemtedstates The facade
features a three story central belvedere, or prospect tower. 'Ihemmt‘msewlthlts

flanking dependencies represents four distinct building phases.

The first phase was a four room, two bedroom farmhouse owned by Charles
Bland in the 1790's 2. Blandwood apparently acquired its name during this period of
ownership. 'anstnxcbarewasasmpleFedemlstyletnnemthaclapboardextenor
and twin exterior brick chimeys.

1ln February 1822 Blandwood was purchased by Henry Humphreys, one of the
area's most affluent citizens. He made additions to the original farmhouse, possibly
by adjoining an existing farmhouse of approximately the same age but with more
elaborate millwork. Humphreys also added porches to the front and the rear of the
altered house. This period constitutes phase two of Blandwood's architectural
history.

Phaseth:eebeganmﬂithesaleofmardbnodbyﬂemymmphreystonm
Motley Morehead in Angust, 18273. Morehead and his family lived in the existing six
roam structure unchanged until 1844. On February 3rd of that year Governor Morehead
brought architect Alexander J. Davis to Greensboro to design a large new addition for
his house.

Davis was an architect of national and international reknown. Morehead became
acquainted with Davis during the final year of his temure as governor of North
Carolina when Davis was retained to make additions to the campus of the University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill. Morehead served two two-year terms as Governor of
North Carolina beginning in 1840.

Davmspaxtthmdaysatﬂarﬂvnodmk:mmhisimtnlde&gnforthe
additions*. He developed expansive plans for the front of the existing structure

1 Jane B. Davies.
Blandwood and the Italian Villa Style in America.
Nineteenth Cenmtury I(3):11-14, 1975.

2 william Bushong.
History of Blandwood
A research report for the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, Archeology and
Historic Preservation Section, Blandwood Archives, 1979.

3 Bushong:21.

4 Alexander Jackson Davis Papers, Bax 5 (Daybook:255).
New York Public Library.
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that included a grand entry hall with twin parlors on either side on the first floor,
two bedroams and a small sitting room on the second floor, and a belvedere tower over
the sitting roam. On the exterior Davis designed arcades exterding from each side of
the house to small dependencies (Appendix B). The construction work was carried out
by Joseph and William Conrad of Lexington, North Carolina® (Appendix C, Figure 1).

The house remained essentially unchanged from 1846, when the work was
completed, until 1897 when Blandwood was leased by the Morehead heirs to The Keeley
Institute which eventually purchased the property in 1905. Blandwood functioned as
the site of The Keeley lnstitute, a drug and alcohol rehabilitation hospital, until
it closed in 1964. Numerous changes were made to Blandwood during this time
including demolition of the dependencies and construction of new dormitories. The
original carriage house was moved and attached to the main house to serve as a dining
hall. Interestingly enough, however, the Keeley Institute made very few changes to
the Davis portion of the main house®.

1n October of 1966, Blandwood was saved from certain demolition when the
Greensboro Preservation Society organized to purchase and save the mansion. lnitially
it was planmned to use Blandwood as a public meeting place. Iater it was decided to
maintain Blandwood as a house miseum. Restoration efforts began in earnest. Sadly,
the carriage house could not withstand being moved a second time when restoration
began in August, 1967. 1t was demolished, except for the cupola, and in 1969 a new
building was constructed. ltwasd&ﬂgmdtoreflectthemmsualoctmnlshapeof
its predecessor with the original cupola installed. This facility is available to
the public for social events, meetings, and seminars thus fulfilling one of
Greensboro Preservation Society's original goals. Dormitories added by The Keeley
Institute were demolished in 1967.

In 1983 extensive archeclogical investigations were carried out by Archeological
Research Consultants, Inc’. Addltla'xally, architectural research on the kitchen and
1awofflcedependa1r:1$wascmdu:ted . This research was supervised by the
Divisian of Archives and History of the North Carolina Department of Cultural

5 Bushong:33.
6 Bushong:92-94.

7 Russell K. Skowranek.
Archeological Investigations at the Blandwood Dependencies.
Research report for the John Motley Morehead Memorial Commission, Blandwood Archives,

1980.

8 carl P. Myatt, Paul Faulkner Callaway, and William R. Atkinson.
Blandwood: Recanstruction of the Kitchen and Office Dependencies.
Research report for the John Motley Morehead Memorial Cammission, Blandwood Archives,
1976.
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Resources. Basedmtlmereports, Greensboro Preservation Society reconstructed the
dependencies as they appeared in Governor Morehead's day.

EXTERTIOR

Blandwood's north side is its facade (Appendix A, Figure 1). It measures
55' in length, not including the projecting bay windows on each side. Designed by
Alexander J. Davis in February 1844, Jane B. Davies describes Blandwood as an
important architectural prototype® with its three story, 38', projecting tower on a
rectangular block. The low pitched, hipped roof reaches a height of 32' and has
notably deep (4') eaves which are supported by simple wooden brackets with curved
terminating ornaments. The ground (entrance) level of the tower has great round
arches on three sides and tall, narrow double windows. There are three 10' arched
openings in each of the 15' tall arcades which lead to the flanking dependencies with
facing gable ends. As on the sides, the second story has double, eight pane, sliding
windows with simple wood trim and interior shutters. The third story room of the
projecting tower has triple windows centered in each wall. The dimensions of
each set of windows are 6' x 8'10 1/2". These are hinged windows that swing irward
and, unlike the other windows in the Davis addition, do not have shutters. The
detailing above these windows consists of a simple wooden bracket, surmounted by a
small masonry cornice. These windows have deep wooden sills.

The exterior of the house reveals its evolution over a sixty year period
fram the 1790's through 1846 when the construction of the additions designed by
Alexander J. Davis were campleted. The different ages of the sections of the house
are readily apparent-—particularly when viewed from the east and west sides where the
sections are joined (Appendix A, Figures 2 & 3). From these sides one is able to
appreciate the design that Davis employed to progress from the older clapboard
sections to the ltalianate stucco addition in the least noticable fashion.

The southern side of the house reflects the portions built in the late
1790's and the 1820's (Appendix A, Figure 4). 1t has seven bays. Beginning at the
eastermmost portion and counting, the two portions were joined between the fourth and
fifth bays. This is easily deduced by the ummatched clapboards which are seen on the
second story. This attachment is cbscured on the first floor by a long covered porch
extending across the middle five bays. The porch and two small storage rooms were
added to the rear of the house when the 1820's additions were made. Windows were put
in each of the storage roams to maintain visual symmetry between the first and second
floors. Each of these small rooms is accessible via a door from the porch. The
western storage room is thought to have been used a safe roam for travelers, unknown
to the family, who needed a place to spend the night. Doors on the first floor,
under the second and sixth bays, lead from the porch into the dining room and the
governor's bedroam. The porch addition, including the two small roams, is 55 feet in
length and ten feet deep.

9 pavies:13-14.
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The east and west sides of the main house are virtually identical (Appendix
A, Figures 2 & 3). Each side of the house is 65 feet in length including the porch
addition. Beginning at the northern corners and working southward, each features a
massive bay window, ten feet tall, ten feet wide, and projecting five feet out from
the house. The arcades then interrupt the sides just south of the bay windows.
Behind the arcades, on the ground level, are recessed areas which provide covered
entrances into the back hall of the house. Leading from these are brick walkways
which extend to the dependencies. The door on the western side of the house is
centered between two windows. Each of these seven by four foot windows is six panes
over nine panes and double hung. The original window an the north side of the
eastern door was removed during renovation to allow addition of a door giving access
to a furnace room (A portion of the rear hall was enclosed to provide space for the

furnace as well.).

South of these doorways, in the center of the older farmhouse section, are
exterior chimneys with, nine over six double hung windows which are 61 inches by 36
inches in size. These chimeys were stuccoed when the Davis addition was built. The
porch addition, including the two small rooms, extends just beyond this section.

On the second floor of the east and west sides, as on the first floor, are
corresponding details. Over the bay windows are small double ltalianate windows with
eight panes in each and with interior shutters. Both the windows and the shutters
slide into pockets in the walls. 1n the areas that project over the recessed doors
are two massive 81" x 62", eight over twelve double hung windows. In the older
section the windows on the first floor are mirrored on the second floor.

The main house has a standing seam terne coated steel roof. It was replaced in 1987
due to the extreme deterioration of the original roof which was coated with a
fiberglass/asphalt campound in the late 1960s. Recent paint analysis reveals that
the original roof was painted a reddish-brown. Just as the present roof was
reconstructed using authentic tools and methods to match the original, it will soon
be painted to recreate the color found on the original as well.

ANTERJOR

The oldest section of the house is the southeastern section. What was once
a long porch ruming the length of the ground floor of the frunt, or northern, side
of the house is now a lang halll0, Upstairs, the corresponding space was divided

10 Henry C. Zenke.
Conversations between Ellen M. Sheridan and Mr. Zenke, restoration architect for

Blandwood. May, 1987.
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into two small roams. It has not been determined if these walls were added by the
Keeley Institute or Davis.

The two downstairs roams, which are part of the original farmhouse, are very
simple in detail. These are referred to on the floorplan as the Dining Room and
Ietitia Morehead's Bedroam. This room has been interpreted as lLetitia's bedroam
because she moved into it following the death of her husband when she moved back to
Blandwood to raise her children and help in the management of the household.

letitia's Bedroom has a small wood-burning fireplace with nine over six
double hung windows on either side of it which look out toward the Kitchen Dependency
on the eastern side of the house. A new mantle has been installed and grained to
camplete the detailing in this roam. An identical window is in the north wall
looking out into the recessed area. The window surrounds are very simple, as was
typical of a rural farmhouse. A chair rail has parallel wooden planks beneath it
with a plaster wall above. Ietitia's Bedroom measures 18°' x 11'. A door on the
south side of the roam leads into the small "storage" roam that is a reconstruction
of the one added in the 1820 porch addition. The original room was removed when the
Keely Institute attached the carriage house at this corner. This small “storage®
roam has a door on its west wall that opens onto the porch and a 9/6 double hung
window on the south wall. This small room measures 10°' x 10°'.

A door on the western wall of lLetitia's Bedroom leads into the Dining Room.
This roam is dominated by a large, 5'5" x 8'7 1/2", wood=burning fireplace on the
west wall. Noteworthy for its Federal style, this mantle has Masonic symbols etched
on the base on each side. These markings are curious as there was no Masonic Order
in this area during the 1790's. It is speculated that a travelling craftsperson may
have carried out the work, or that Henry Humphreys, who was a Mason, had the mantle
installed. The mantle was grained and the plaster surround marbleized. These
original faux finishes were duplicated, following paint analysis, in 1985. As in
Letitia's Bedroom, the Dining Room has very simple window surrounds and a simple
chair rail for detail with wide, painted planks running parallel beneath. The
woodwork in the Dining Room is painted a bright green color which was also determined
through paint analysis. There are whitewashed, plastered walls above the chair rail.
On the south wall is a door to the back porch with two nine over six double hung
windows to the west of it.

On the west wall of the Dining Roam is a door leading through a 3' passage
into the section of the house added in 1820 by Henry Humphreys. The passageway
slopes dowrward toward the west approximately 1 1/2%. The walls of the passageway
are planking resembling that below the chair rail in the Dining Room and Letitia's
rocm. At the end of this passage a second doorway leads into the Governor's Bedroam.

The Governor's Bedroam has much more elaborate detail than the previously
described section of the house. The sophisticated recessed wainscoting and window
surrounds are of the Federal style and are painted the same bright green that was
used in the Dining Roam, again as indicated through paint analysis. The mantle on
the west wall, also of the Federal style has a cambination of graining and
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marbleizing that has been authentically reproduced. Like the other fireplaces in the
older sections of the house, this ane is also a wood-burning fireplace. Deep framing
surrounds the windows. 'meromhasatotaloffmrwrdmslocatedasfollmvs one
on the south wall to the east of the door that leads ocut to the porch; two, ane on

either side of the fireplace, on the west wall; cne on the west side of the door
in the north wall. 1n the northeastern corner of the roam are four steps which lead
up to a door. A narrov, mrvmgstamyacterdsfranthedoortotlesecmdfloor

bedrocm above. The northern door of the Governor's Bedroam opens into the Rear Hall.

The Rear Hall was originally the front porch of the "joined" farmhouses. A
staepstalrwaythatgoesupthewestm«jeofthemrthwalljo:.rnsltmththe
oon'aspomln;spaoemthesecaﬂfloorn. This stairway is not a part of the Davis
addition. The Greensboro Preservatiaon Society brought the newel post and bannister
from another notable Greensboro home, Dunleith, when it was demolished. At each end
ofthehallaxed:orsmidaopenarttobrickml]waysleadin;toﬂaedepetﬂencia.
A door on the west wall has large windows on both sides. The east side originally
had a window an each side of the door; however, the window an the north side of the doer
was loet when a small section of the hall was closed off to house a furnace. This
necessitated the installation of a door where the window was previocusly located. A
door on the north side of the hall opens into the main stairwell.

The upstairs section of the old farmhouse nearly duplicates the floorplan
and detailing seen on the first floor except that the small "storage” roams and porch
are not repeated an the second floor. The exception to this is in the space over the
Back Hall. On the secard floor this area was divided into two roams, each with a
fireplace, with a small hallway running perpendicular that commected them to the
Davis addition. As part of the Davis addition, these fireplaces are coal-burning and
display mantles carved from marble in the Greek Revival Style. Centered on each end
is a floor to ceiling eight over twelve double hung window measuring 81% x 62%., The
wall that created the room on the east end of this space is no langer in existance.
The wall forming the room an the west side has a door topped by a 24" x 30" transam

The next two rooms ocorrespand to Letitia's Bedroom and the Dining Room.
Accordingly, as thess four roams together constituted the original farmhouse, the
floors,dmlrmilwithpanllelwadplankuqbaeamarﬂplaster\allam, and,
window surrounds are repeated in the same simple Federal style described in Letitia's
Bedroom and the Dining Roam.

The southeast corner rogm, located over letitia's Bedroom, is remarkable in
that the original pine graining is still imtact on the back of the door located on
the north wall. This original graining was used as the model when the back of a door
on the west wall and the mantle were grained. The wood-burning fireplace shares the
chimey with the fireplace in Letitia's Bedroom and bears the same Federal style
wooden mantle. There are three nine over six double hung windows in this room: two,

11 comversations with Zenke. May, 1987.
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one on each side of the fireplace, on the east wall, and ane on the south wall which
overlooks the porch.

The door on the west wall leads imto a spaciocus bedroam located directly
over the Dining Room. For purposes of interpretation, this room is called the
Children's Roam. There are three nine over six double g windows on the south wall
overlooking the porch. A wooden, Federal style mantle adorns the wood-burning
fueplacemthawestwallmld)shamachmneywlthtluDmirgRoanfireplace
This mantle has also been grained using the original graining in the previous roam as
the model. A door on the west side of the north wall leads cut into the

perpendicular hallway.

The bedroom located above the Governor's Bedroam also is a part of the 1820
Humphreys addition and as such, has the same elaborate recessed wainscoting and
window surrounds described previously. The eastern section of this room was
partitioned off to accommodate two restroams. There are seven windows in this roam:
three on the south wall overlooking the porch; two on the west wall on either side of
the fireplace; two an the north wall which would have locked over the fromt porch
before the Davis addition. It is interesting to note that the windows on the north
wall were not sealed. The wood-burning fireplace on the west wall has a chimney in
cammon with the Governor's Bedroom fireplace. The narrow, curving stairway
emerges in the northeastern corner of this room. The wall behind it reveals the
clapboard side of the original 1790 farmhouse as well as the chimney from the Dining
Roam fireplace. A doorway, up two additional steps, is located on the north wall
justwatofthesnallstalmyleadj:gtranthecovenbr'saedman This opens into
one of the rooms created over the Rear Hall.

Interior: The Alexander Jackson Davis Addition

The Davis addition to Blandwood is divided into three sections on both the
first and second floors. The middle section is more narrow than the outer sections.
Construction was begun in May, 1844 and campleted in 1846. 1t is important to note
that Davis himself selected many of the fittings for the addition including such
details as doorknobsl? . When Governor and Mrs. Morehead made a trip to New York to
purchase furnishings, Davis accompanied them to assist in the selection. Many facets
ofthedesxgstmmvis'snmamveldeasa:ﬂdamtomximmahghtarﬂ
ventilation

12 Mary lewis Rucker Edmmds.
Nineteenth Century Blandwood in North Carolina.
Nineteenth Cemtury I(3):7,1975.

13 pavies:12-13.
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Approaching Blandwood from the north side is impressive. Entering the front
portico, the ground level of the projecting tower, one cames through the great front
doors into the Entrance Hall. These 10' double doors each have two vertical panels
at the bottam of each with eight panes of glass on the top sections. They swing
imward into the Entrance Hall. This grand space features elaborate plasterwork on
the ceiling, as does the West Parlors. It is an anthemion Greek Revival motif of
stylized honeysuckle with a medallion of a grape leaf design in the center. The
doors to the portico and the twin parlors are framed by Tuscan pilasters and
" entablature. There are two doors an the south wall. The one on the west side opens
into a closet space while the ane on the east side has two steps up into the enclosed
central stairway. These doors have six recessed panels: two long panels in the
center with two smaller panels placed at the top and the bottom of the lang panels.
This style is duplicated on all doors in the addition with the excsption of the
massive fromt doors and in the East and West Parlors. A 9 1/2" baseboard runs
throughout the Davis addition—both upstairs and down. These have besn marbleized in
the Entrance Hall, East, and West Parlors. The woodwork has also been grained in
these areas. Boththegrammgarﬂmrblelzmmredaxetodupllcatewhatwas
present during the Morehead era at Blandwood14 (Appendix A, Figure 9).

To the east of the Entrance Hall is the East Parlor. The 10° doors that
swing irmward are of the same design as the smaller doors in the addition. This
parlor may have been designed by Davis to be used as a dining room although the
Morehead family chose to contimue the dining room in the old section of the house.
Since it was designed as a dining roam, it has a butler's pantry an the southeast
side of the south wall. This pantry has warming and holding cupboards on each side
andasmaddoormltssa:thwallprovﬁjmaccesstothe East Dependency. On
the oiilger side of the fireplace is an identical door that opens into another closet
space—. The coal-burning fireplace is surrounded by a marble mantle carved in the
Greek revival style. On the east wall is a deep bay window 10° wide and 5'deep which
is enclosed by 10' tall doors that slide into pockets in the walls. The bay has
three pairs of windows surmounted by a keystone arch. The center pair consists of
two six over six double hung windows. On each side of these is a pair of twelve pane
hinged windows that swing irmard. These windows are idemtical in each of the bays.
The sliding doors that enclose the bay each have twelve mirrored panes facing imward.
These mirrors were designed to offer maximm reflection of existing light when the
doors were closed. The north wall is dominated by a large 8' x 5'10% double window
with interior shutters. Rather than being double hung or hinged, these windows and
their shutters slide into pockets in the walls. The plasterwork on the ceiling
repeats the grape leaf design seen in the Entrance Hall.

14 pavid Black.
Paint analysis conducted for the Greensboro Preservation Society, Blandwood Archives,

1986.

15 Benry C. Zenke.
Conversation with Ellen M. Sheridan. October, 1987.



NP8 Form 10400 Gl Agsrondl Ma 10540510
(-8

United States Department of the Interlor
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 7 Page

The West Parlor is the more elaborate of the twin parlors principally due to
its more elaborate plasterwork. The medallion on the ceiling is slightly more
elaborate and is enhanced by a Greek Revival anthemion frieze. Each of the 10' doors
that open into the parlor fram the Entrance Hall have the same design as the others
on the Hall side. On the Parlor side, however, each door has three gilt edged mirror
panels. When closed these mirrors functioned as the ones in the East Parlor did—to
reflect light. The 10' sliding doors on the identical bay window differ in that they
arefittedwithpanesofclearglass.ArdlitecmrallytheWestardEastParlorsare
identical, (both measuring 21°' x 19'), with one exception: the south wall in the West
Parlorhasmlyﬂxecawedmzblemntleamnﬂi&coal—b.mnj:gfir@lace The doors
flanking the fireplace in the East Parlor are not repeated here.

The arrangement of windows displays Davis's fondness for good light and
ventilation. By opening the doorways and bay windows cne can provide a breeze across
the house or comtrol drafts. This is also seen in the design of the enclosed
stairway. It allowed privacy in the upstairs living quarters as well as comtrol of
ventilation by use of the doors on the first floor. A amrved stairway leads to the
central hall on the second floor. This hall has a large bedroam on both the east and
west side and a small parlor an the north side.

Justasmthefirstﬂoor,ﬂmrmmeaméideofﬂmeoentetmnwayare
identical in size, (21' x 19'), and basic layout. They each have double windows with
interior shutters, like those in the parlors, which measure north and east walls. In

walls. The only difference in the two rooms is that the East Bedroam has a door on
the southern wall, to the west of the fireplace, which leads imto a small closet

space.

The Upstairs Parlor incorporates the second story of the tower. 1t has a
coal-burning fireplace on the west wall which has a marble mantle like all of the
other mantles in the Davis addition. Sliding windows of the same dimension and
description as the anes in the bedroams, including interior shutters, are located on
the west wall just north of the fireplace with another set directly across fram them
on the east wall and a third set centered in the north wall. The main body of the
Upstairs Parlor is 14 1/2°' x 14 1/2 '. Along the southeastern side of the roam is a
stairway leading to the third story of the tower. A door at the foot of the steps
has the original graining intact an the stairway side. Double doors swing outward
into the hall from the Upstairs Parlor. Each door has four recessed wooden panels
(two at the top and two at the bottam) with nine glass panes centered in three rows
between.

The third story of the tower is a small, square (14 1/2° x 14 1/2') room
campletely surrounded by windows. A set of three windows is centered in each of the
walls. Each window has eight panes of glass and is hinged to swing imvard. The
dimensions of each set of windows are 6' x 8'10 1/2°%.
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The flooring in the Davis addition is pine plank flooring; however, rather
than rumning east/west as they do in the older sectians, the planks in the Davis

THE DEPENDENCTFES

Both of the Blandwood dependencies have been reconstructed based on
archeological evidence as well as scholarly research. The exteriors of both are
stuccoed in the same way as the Davis addition to the main house.

Archeological Research conducted by Archeological Research Consultamts, lnc. of
Chapel Hill determined that the West Dependency, which was built to serve as Governor
Morehead's law office extended thirty feet south and five feet north of the arcadel®.
The building was two stories tall and fifteen feet wide. It was reconstructed with
two roams of equal size, 20' by 15', on the first floor (Appendix A, Figures 6a-6d).

Each roam on the first floor has a coalburning fireplace and marble mantle certered
in the west wall. The northern roam is interpreted as the Governor's lLaw Office. It
has . four six over nine double hung windows. Two are located on each side of the
fireplace in the west wall, another is centered in the north wall. A door is located
on the south east wall of the room and leads ocut to a paved walkway to the main
housel’. * A four panel door on at the westerrmost point of the south wall opens into
a stairway. The southern room is now used as a Ninsteenth Century Resource Certer.
It has two windows identical to those in the law Office with one centered in the
south wall and another on the west wall to the right of the fireplace. It also has a
four panel door centered in its east wall that leads out toward the main house. The
walls in the downstairs are unpainted plaster. Floors are wide plank floors made of
southern yellow pins.

The second floor also has two roams of equal size with the stairway opening into the
northern room. As these roams are utilized for archives and storage of miseum
collectians, they are sheetrocked rather than plastered. The floors upstairs are the
same type of wide plank flooring found downstairs. There are two windows, one
centered on each gabel end.

The roof on the dependency is like that of the main house: terne coated steel with a
starding 1" seam.

*The fourth window is to the north of
16 skowronek:33. this door on the east wall and overlooks
the arcade and the pathway to the house.

17 skowronek:33-34.
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two stories. It differs in that it is forty feet long: five feet north and thirty
feet south of the arcade. Photographs of the two dependencies indicate that same
msﬂ:gstrwﬂnemyhavebemlmorporatedtomlargemelaumstmcy

Close examination of late nineteenth cemtury photographs show the building with the
two different roofing materials: a standing seam roof on the north section and slate

on the south end. 'I‘axrecordsalsomtethedlfferaatmofmtenals These two
different materials were used in the reconstruction as welll8. pPhotographic evidence
alsomvealsﬂntﬂesaxth&deofﬂnkitdmmscweredmclaﬂaoardsmﬂ:erﬂun
stucco. This treatment has also been reproduced (Appendix A, Figures 7a-7d).

The East Dependency has been recanstructed as a kitchen, its original function, as
well as an educational facility for visitors to Blandwoodl®. Like the West
Dependency, it was reconstructed with two rooms of equal size on each floor. The
north room is used as the Education Roam. The windows are six over nine double hung.
There is one centered in the north wall and another to the right of the marble mantle
on the east wall. The mantel swrounds a coalburning fireplace. A door leads from
the west wall out to a paved walkway to the main house. A second door leads from the
westerrmmost section of the south wall into the Kitchen.

The south room is inmterpreted as an early nineteenth century plantation kitchen. Its
daminating feature is a massive brick wood burning fireplace on the south wall. It
has a beehive oven. Cnawirﬂmislocatedcnthewastexnwallwiththeothermthe
eastern wall. A stairway, mach like the one in the West Dependency, is located in

the easterrmost section of the north wall. A door closes the stairway off frum the
Kitchen. A door in the west wall leads ocut to the same paved walkway.

The floors are wide plank southern yellow pine. They have been left unfinished. The
walls in the Education Room are of unfinished plaster. The walls in the Kitchen are
bare planks of yellow southern pine. Just as in the West Dependency, the upstairs
roams are used soley for storage; therefore, the upstairs rooms are sheetrocked.

18 skewronek:29
19 skewronek:28-29.



8. Statement of Significance
Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properiies:

nationally []statewide [iocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [ JA [ |8 [Xlc []p
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [_JA [ 18 [Je [Jo [Je [Ifr [Je

Significant Dates

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance
1844

Architecture = Renaissance Revival = Mid-Nineteenth Century
ITtalian Villa

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder
Alexander Jackson Davis, Architect

William And Joseph Conrad, Builders

Significant Person
Alexander Jackson Davis

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

Blandwood isabuilding of national significance by one of the mid-nineteenth century's
foremost architectss Alexander Jackson Davis. Its elegant design, alone, would make
it an exceptional treasure; but, it features two additional characteristics.
Blandwood is America's earliest surviving example of the Italian villa style. Research
by Jane B. Davies, the biographer of A. J. Davis, has indicated that one other house,
the Lyman House was designed by Richard Upjohn an? built in Brookline, Mass. about the
same time that Blandwood was built in Greensboro. That house also reflected the
Italian influence. However, the Lyman house was demolished in 1956. Many people

are also familiar with an Italian villa depicted in Andrew Jackson Downing's 1841
edition of A Treatise on the Theory and Practice of Landscape Gardening. This house
was to have been built for a Mr. Smillie gf Kingston, NY. It was never completed

however, as it proved to be too expensive.

Blandwood was also an influential prototype of the Italian villa style. Davis com~
pleted his design for Blandwood in February of 1844. He made the preliminary drawings
while spending three days in Greensboro in the early part of that month. He finalized
his plans after leaving Greemsboro, but still in North Carolina and still in the com-
pany of Governor Morehead in Raleigh. Upon his return to New York, Davis made an
engraving of Blandwood for the 1844 edition of Downing's A Treatise on the Theory

and Practice of Landscape Gardening. The illustration remained in subsequent editions
of this book. Mrs. Davies described the impact of this illustration as follows:-

In creating the design at Blandwood, Davis produced what is probably

the prototype for one of the mogt popular American house patterns in

the Italianate mode: a bold central front tower projecting from a
rectangular block...This basic house pattern (without the linked
dependencies) was used widely and variously interpreted by other
architects and builders, who made changes in the details and often

added balconies, verandas and/or terraces. The pattern continued to

be used on into the Second Empire period by simply adding a mansard roof.

ESGG continuation shest.
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Mrs. Davies has also remarked on the popularity of the Italian style in America
during the period just before the Civil War. She writes, "It was so popular in
this country that some writgrs consider it close to a national style in the decade
just before the Civil War."

Jane B. Davies.
Discussion between Mrs. Davies and Ellen M. Sheridan.
June, 1987.

2 Richard Upjohn.
Original drawings for the Lyman House.
Archives, Society for the Preservation of New England Antiquities.

Boston, Massachusetts.

Jane B. Davies.
Blandwood and the Italian Villa Style in America.
Nineteenth Century I(3):11-12, 1975.

4L'Davies:B:-M.

- Davies:l4.
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@ See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS):

E:]preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested State historic preservation office
[X] previously listed in the National Register (] other State agency
’._‘] previously determined eligible by the National Register D Federal agency
Ddesignated a National Historic Landmark [:]Local government
D recorded by Historic American Buildings {:] University
Survey # KX] other
D recorded by Historic American Enginsering Specify repository:
Record # Blandwood Archives

New York Public Library

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property

2 acres

UTM References

All7 | 6D 8]5.6,5] 39192 |1,810, Blu7 lelorglarzio) laiolaizl1iaisl
Zone  Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing

cl|L,7] [6]0,8]6,4,5] [3,9]9,2]0,0,0] olL1,7] [6l0,8[54,0] [3,919,2/0 3 0]

D See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

Blandwood occupies an entire block in downtown Greensboro.
the North by West Washington Street, on the East by Blandwood Avenue, on the

South by McGee Street, and on the West by Edgeworth Street.

It is bounded on

|:] Ses continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The two and a half acres represented on the survey map are the remaining acreage
from the original 50 acre estate of Governor John Motley Morehead. TIn 1844
Blandwood was on the outskirts of the small village of Greensboro. Today the
house stands near the center of a thriving city.

[:] Ses continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

namefiitle Ellen M. Sheridan, Director and Marlene H. Lentz, Administrative Assistant
organization __Greensboro Preservation Society date _ 12-15-87

street & number 447 West Washington Street telephone (919) 272-5003

city or town Greensboro state __NC zip code _27403
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BLANDWOOD (Front Facade)
Greensboro, North Carolina
Photo by Robert Cavin. 9/87
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BLANDWOOD (Rear Facade, Main House)
Greensboro, North Carolina
Photo by Robert Cavin 9/87
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BLANDWOOD (Western side showing arcade)
Greensboro, North Carolina

Photo by Robert Cavin 9/87



BLANDWOOD (west dependency with arcade)
Greensboro, North Carolina

Photo by Robert cavin 9/87
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DAVIS PLAN FOR BLANDWOOD
Original watercolor in Metropolitan Museum

BLANDWOOD (1880 Watercolor)
Greensboro, North Carolina
Archives, Metropolitan Museum
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BLANDWOOD, (west parlor doors to hall)
Greensboro, North Carolina
Photo by Robert Cavin 9/87
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(Chock Ono)
L Excellont ] Good Fair [ Deterioratod [ Ruins [ Unoxposod
CoNpITION |2 : K :
(Chock Ono) o (Clwck Ong)
' ﬁﬁ Alterod (7] Unalterod ' [:] Moved @& Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE ]
Dxterior: The main front of Blandwood is an excellent example of Alexander
Jackson Davis's Italienate style. The brick walls of the central block and
of the arcade which originally connected it to flanking dependencies are of
brick covered with stucco. In the center of the main section is an entrance
tower which has semi-~cilrcuwlar arches on its three exposed sides. . Above each
arch, on the second floor level, are double casement windows. The third floor
tower room has triple casement windows on ecach side. There are double case~:
ment windows flanking the tower on both the first and second floor levels.
Those on the first floor are elongaved. Masonry trim occurs at the cornice
levels, the facings of the arches, and at the base of the upper tower windows,
The roof has the deep projection and low pitch typical of Italianate work.

It retains its original +in sheathing with standing seams. The fanciful
treatment of the chimneys is especially interesting. Originally this block
was flanked by two simnall dependencles. One was Governor Morehead's office
and the other the kiltchen. These were conmnected to the main block by

arcaded walls., Portions of these walls still stand but the dependencies no
longer exist. The side elevations include large glazed projecting bays in
front of the arcaded walls. Behind the walls were small porches leading to
the recessed back hall. At the rear are the remains of thewarly two-room
house which preceded Davis's work. This portion of the house is in such an
altered and dilapidated state that it is difficult to ascertain the original
form, The whole of the ground floor measures approximately fifty-five feet
square. '

Interior: There are six rooms on the first floor. The central entrance hall
is flanked by two rooms of equal size, the dining room to the left, and the
parlor to the right. The original stalr was removed from the hall and the
grescnt onc is a later replacement. In these rooms the wooden trim is quite
simple. All three rooms have very elaborate plaster decoration. The moulded
cornice rests on a frieze enriched by panels decorated with anthemlons.
Garlands of grape leaves and frult run around the edges of the ceilings. The
claborate center modillions are composed of radiating anthemions surrounded

Che hall doorways and the sliding glazed arched doors to projecting bays are
Lramed by full height Tuscan pilasters. The original interlors of the-two
rooms in the older section have disappeared. The rear hall was originally a
Long porch. Davis enclosed it to form the connection between his addition
and the older section. On the second floor the finish is exbremely simple.

i

by o wreath of flowers and foliage and another wreath of grape leaves and frult.
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CSIGNITIGANG
PERIOD (Clieck Ono or More as Appropriato)
[0 Pre-Columbian| (1 16th Contury ] 18th Century o O 20th Contury
[J 15th Century [ 17th Ceontury (L 19th Contury : '

SPECIFIC DATELS) (If Applicable and Known)

i AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Chock One or Moro as Approprlate)

: Abor iginal . [0 Education (4 Political ' : " (O Urban Planning
l ) » TJ Prohistoric O Enginéorlng~ O Religion/Phi. . .0 UJ Other (SpoF'IY)
: ) v [T Historic O Industry losophy ‘

‘ O] Agriculture . [J Invention ] Science ‘

' (5 Architocture {J Lendscape " [ Sculpture

' O Art ) Architecture ' O Social/Human- -

! ‘[ Commorco - 'Lit?ro'ure itorian

7 ] Communicotions} O Military (3 Theater

i (] Co‘nscrvution O Music C]‘Tronsporfo'ion

) I STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

| | John Motley Morehead (1796~1866) was one of Greensboro's most distinguished
.| citizens and an outstanding governor of North Carolina. 4 lawyer and
entrepreneur, he was a statesman of unusual vislon. During many terms in

| “bhe lcglulaturo and two terms as govemor (1841-1845) he sought legislation

L to give the state a unified transportation system. He vigoriously

supported the "literary Fund" for establishing common schools and for

enacting legislation to ameliorate the conditions of slaves. He persuaded

i the legislature to provide for a penitentiary system, a school for the

| deaf and blind, and an asylun for the insane. He was foremost in the

| group who established the North Carolina Railroad which ran from the coast
% westward to Morganton and opened up the state to trade and travel. He '

| was a trustee of the University for 36 years and organized the aluwmi

f assoclation. As his career developed he became prominent in national

. politics, serving as presiding officer of the national Whig convention

. | which in 1848 nominated General Zachary Taylor for the presidency. He,
himself, was twlce close to the vice~pr001dcncy. He was one of the
delegates from North Carolina to the Peace Congress at Washington in 1861,
and was in 1861-62 a member of the Provisional Congress of the Confeaerato
States. DMorchead was host to many distinguished guésts during the Civil
War years, including Generals Beauregard and Johnston, Commander Lee
(brother of General Lee), Cabinet members Alexander Stephens, Christopher
Memminger and Judah P. Benjamin. President Davis, fleeing Richmond, was

- invited to Blandwood but declined fearing reprisals against the Morehead
family. Cox and other Federal genenl under Sherman's cormand, were

- received with courtesy.

" In 1844 while governor, John Morehead met the noted architect, Alewand»;'

Jackson Davis, It was atthis time thalt he contracted Davis to enlarge

Blandviood. Davis designed a "Tuscan villa™ in the then fashionable

Italianate style. Several drawings of Blandwood by Davis are in the

| Metropolitan Museum. One etching of Blandwood appeared in Andrew Jackson

| Dovning's A Treatise on the Theory and Practice of Landscape Gardening

I (1859 edition)., Davis worked with Downing on this well-known and influen-

tial work end supplled the drawing of Blandwood wnlch is the only southern

house to appear in that ealt¢on.
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The briginal land grant to the Blandwood property was to Thomas McCulston

in 1768; At his death it was inherited by his son, Jmnes.McC%iston,
who sold it to Charles Bland for 56 pounds in 1795. It must have been
during Charles Bland's ownership thal Blandwood received its name.

In 1800 Joseph Thornburgh bought Blandwood from Charles Bland. In 1827
Thomas Caldwell sold the land to Henry Huaphreys. Henry Huaphreys

- married Letitia Lindsay, the widow of Robert Lindsay. . letitia Lindsay's

daughter by her first husband, Ann Eliza Iindsay, married John Motley

Morehead in 182L.. He purchased Blandwood from his wife's step-father,
Henry Humphreys, in 1827. After Morehead's death in 1866 the property
was inherited by his younger son, Iugene. He later sold it Lo his

~ brother—in-law, Julius Gray. Blandwood belonged to the Gray family until

1896 when it was leased and later bought by Keeley Institute. Until

1965 it was used as a rehabilitation center for alcoholics. It is
presently owned by the Greensboro‘Preservation Society. ‘
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NSO BTELIOG RARFICAL REFERENCE

Ashe, Samuel A. (ed.), Biographical History of North Carolina. (Greensboro:
Charles L. Van Noppen, 8 volumes, 1905-1907), '

Downinge Andrew Jackson, A Treatise on the Theory and Practice>of Landscape
Gordening. (New York:  John Wiley and Sons, Ince, 1859).

Guilfo;d County.Records, Guilford County Courthouse, Greenéborb, North
Carolina. Office of the Register of Deeds. (Subgroups: Deeds, Wills,
Estate Papers). , . . ' L

'

RPAICAL DAT

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LLONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER ’ LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE

| |Dogrees Minutes Soconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Dogrees Minutes Seconds

i ]
NW1 ] " o . " 36 o » lo " r o ] »
NE : e 1) L] o [} n . L“ S . . . /9 . 47 . 49
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APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 2 acres

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

5TATE ‘ ) CODE | COUNTY ) - o ) . cope

STATE; . . CODE | COUNTY: . e ’ CODE

STATEf’ CODE | COUNTY: ‘ ’ CODE

STATE? ) . — CODE | COUNTY: . e » CODE
ORM PREPARE]

NAME AND TITLE:

EE%¥E8£§m£3_£isneyaﬂA~” she strator,Historie-Sitds—and-Museuwns ———
_State Departwent of Archives and History _March 3, 1970
STREET AND NUMBER:

109 Fast Jones Street ' '

CITY OR TOWN! STATE . CODE
Raleirh ‘ North Carolina 32

As the designated State Lijaison Officer for the Na- '
tional Hisloric Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evnluafed according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The reéommended

level of significance of this nomination is: . . . . : ,,

I hereby certify that this property-is included in the |

National Register,

.

.

Chiel, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

National 7] State [§§ Local [J

. / » f
Name -[2 /VU%
- H.G. Jones
| Titie Director, State Department of

Date

ATTEST:

" Archives and History Keepor of The National Rogister

et Morch 3,1970 | vate
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